
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
981 H Street, Suite 100, Crescent City, CA 95531 

July 24, 2017 4:00 pm 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Hearings  
A. Smith River CSD MSR SOI Update  

(This hearing was continued, and will be closed and then re-noticed, to 
allow more time to work with the District) 

3. Regular Business 
A. Approval of May 22, 2017 Draft Minutes (ATTACHMENT 3A)  

B. FY 2016-17 year end accounting  (ATTACHMENT 3B) 

C. Klamath Fire Protection District Update including Del Norte Grand Jury 
response (ATTACHMENT 3C) 

4. Inquiries, Reports, Correspondence, Application Status and Referrals 
A. Staff - The Executive Officer will provide a report of current projects, 

issues of interest, and pending legislation (ATTACHMENT 4C). 

Report on Harbor District presentation 

Report on HRC CSD potential annex discussions 

Report on State Water Resources Control Board coordination on water 
services extensions to mobile home parks 

Report on Cost recovery for BOV CSD litigation (Counsel) 

State legislation for Special District seats on LAFCo 

CALFIRE Correspondence  

Rules of Order Report 

B.  Commission - On their own initiative, Commission members may make 
brief announcements or reports on their own activities. They may ask 
questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or request a business 
matter for a future agenda per Government Code Section 54954.2 (a). 

C. Public - Public comment on items of interest within LAFCo subject 
matter jurisdiction, and not otherwise appearing on the agenda.  No 
action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda. 

5. Adjournment 



REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

May 22, 2017 4:00 pm 
 

Members present: Blake Inscore (Vice-Chair), Roger Gitlin (Chairman), Gerry 
Hemmingsen, Bob Berkowitz, Sparky Countess 

 
Members absent: Jason Greenough 
 
Others present:  Executive Officer George Williamson, County Counsel Elizabeth 
Cable, and Nicole Burshem, PS Business Services, Linda Sutter 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Chairman Gitlin called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
Nicole Burshem took roll call. 
Commissioner Countess led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Closed Session 

Chairman Gitlin adjourned to closed session at 4:01 p.m. and 
reconvened in open session at 4:11. Elizabeth Cable, Legal Counsel, 
reported LAFCO is successful in the case - CVPT 16-1124, and the Notice 
of Entry of Judgement was entered. 
Public Comment on Closed Session items only 
The following person(s) addressed the Commission: None 
Conference with Legal Counsel- Existing litigation pursuant to 
Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1) Bertsch-Ocean View Community 
Services District v. Del Norte LAFCo  et. al CVPT 16-1124 

2. Public Hearings  
A. FY 2017-18 Final Budget (ATTACHMENT 3A) – Chairman Gitlin asked Mr. 

Williamson to identify the Acronyms addressed in the report and 
opened public hearing at 4:14 p.m. Mr. Williamson reported this is the 
second public hearing on this matter. The prior meeting on March 27th 

was for the draft budget where the Commission took favorable action. 
Mr. Williamson reported he has distributed the budget to the City and 
County staff, it was posted, and we received no response. This budget 
is the same as the last two. Mr. Williamson reported there has been no 
budget increase for several years. Last year there was a slight 
reduction. This budget restores the FY 2016-17 amounts. The 
Commission has followed the appropriate protocols.  

Chair Gitlin opened public hearing. The Resolution has been prepared. 
There is one change from Draft Budget reviewed at the March 
meeting. There was a slight increase in the County Interfund Cost Plan 
charge. The Resolution is in the packet for the Commission to review. 



Commissioner Berkowitz asked if Mr. Williamson could explain what 
some of the items are for, such as the insurance. Mr. Williamson 
responded there is some exposure given your action that affect 
money, territory, and extension of services. This is insurance for you as a 
commission in case there was a suit, this is like Errors and Omission 
insurance. Commissioner Berkowitz asked if the county insurance 
worked for this. Mr. Williamson responded you are an independent 
commission so no that would not work. Commissioner Berkowitz asked 
what the Interfund-Cost Plan is. Mr. Williamson responded it is an 
expense item (budget account #70530) the County charges to the 
commission for managing the accounts and funds held in the County 
Auditor’s office, such as when LAFCo receives funds from the City or an 
application deposit. Linda Sutter commented that everything is 
reviewed in the public concerning these meetings and it is kind of hard 
to review a budget when you don’t have access to it. Mr Williamson 
responded that the meeting agendas including the budget items, are 
posted on the Del Norte LAFCo website www.delnortelafco.org. 

On a motion by Commissioner Countess, seconded by Commissioner 
Inscore, and unanimously carried on a polled vote the Del Norte Local 
Agency Formation Board of Commissioners approved FY 2017-18 Final 
Budget. 

B. Smith River CSD MSR SOI Update (to be continued to July meeting) – 
Mr. Williamson reported we are making good progress and there was a 
change since the last review. There has been a Smith River Community 
Service District management change. This MSR is the first one that the 
general manager has worked on. We are helping him understand the 
process and why they are doing it. There has been good progress, but 
we don’t have everything to present to you. He is confident they will 
have that ready very soon. He is requesting that they open that up to 
the public, take action, and continue the hearing until July. 

On a motion by Commissioner Inscore, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkowitz, and unanimously carried on a polled vote the Del Norte 
Local Agency Formation Board of Commissioners approved to 
continue the hearing until the July24 meeting. 

3. Regular Business 
A. Approval of March 27, 2017 Draft Minutes (ATTACHMENT 4A) –  

On a motion by Commissioner Inscore, seconded by Commissioner 
Countess, and unanimously carried on a polled vote the Del Norte 
Local Agency Formation Board of Commissioners approved the 
minutes of March 27, 2017. 

B. Approval of FY 2017-18 Staffing Services Contract (ATTACHMENT 4B) – 
Mr. Williamson reported we have been fortunate to be able to provide 



staffing services since 2008. We enjoy the work and feel it is very 
meaningful. One of the highlights was helping the Fair board form a 
special district. We were able to work with the Fair board to form a Park 
and Recreation Community Service District. They are in a much better 
financial situation. Mr. Williamson reported there is periodic request for 
service extension. We provide the service down in Humboldt as well as 
Del Norte. We would like to continue your staffing services for the next 
fiscal year.  

On a motion by Commissioner Countess, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkowitz, and unanimously carried on a polled vote the Del Norte 
Local Agency Formation Commission approved FY 2017-18 staffing 
services contract with Planwest Partners Inc.  

C. Klamath Fire Protection District Update (ATTACHMENT 4C) – Mr. 
Williamson reported there is a report and a list of ten key items in the 
packet. Since the last meeting, we have talked about all of these 10 
items. This same group of items was considered last week at the 
Klamath River Fire District board meeting. Theres another meeting on 
June 6th. Mr. Williamson reported we hope to make even more 
progress on this at that meeting. This is just a staff report for an update, 
but in July we hope to have more concrete information. Linda Sutter 
asked if the Commission is voting on this item. Chairman Gitlin 
responded we are not voting on this just getting an update and asked 
Mr. Williamson when the Commission will be voting on this item. Mr. 
Williamson responded at the July meeting. Chairman Gitlin asked Mr. 
Williamson to reach out to the Tribe to answer questions at the next 
meeting. 

4. Inquiries, Correspondence, Application Status and Referrals 
A. Staff - The Executive Officer will provide a report of current projects, 

issues of interest, and pending legislation. Mr. Williamson reported he 
has been contacted by the water board and within the Hussy Ranch 
Corporation (HRC) Community Service District there is potential to 
combine those water systems. Mr. Williamson will meet with the water 
board engineer tomorrow morning to see what their plans are. Mr. 
Williamson is hoping to come back in July with more of a report. 
Commissioner Inscore asked if there was any more opportunity to ask 
special districts to come to the table to join the board. Mr. Williamson 
responded he has and he wants to see where the legislation goes and 
if that is approved we will have some specific legislation that we can 
use to streamline that process. The action should be soon.  

B. Commission - On their own initiative, Commission members may make 
brief announcements or reports on their own activities. They may ask 
questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or request a business 
matter for a future agenda per Government Code Section 54954.2 (a). 



Commissioners commented: None 

C. Public - Public comment on items of interest within LAFCo subject 
matter jurisdiction, and not otherwise appearing on the agenda.  No 
action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda. 

Public comment: None 

5. Adjournment 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Berkowitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Countess, and unanimously carried the Del Norte Local Agency 
Formation Board of Commissioners approved to adjourn the meeting. 
There being no further business to come before the Commission, the 
Chairman adjourned the meeting at 4:46 p.m. until the next regularly 
scheduled meeting on July 24, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________  
Respectfully Submitted, 



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3A 

MEETING DATE: July 24, 2017  

TO:   Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM:  George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer  

SUBJECT:  FY 2016-2017 Year End Accounting 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

The following procedures are recommended with respect to the Commission’s consideration 
of this item:   

By order of the Chair, with Commission concurrence, review FY 2016-17 Budget Amendment.   

• Receive verbal report from staff; 

DISCUSSION 

The FY 2016-17 Final Budget was adopted by the Commission on May 23, 2016. A budget 
amendment was made to account for an actual available fund balance of $4,569.00, which is 
$4,255.00 less than staff calculation. The Commission selected budget amendment option 2, 
which maintained FY 2016-17 staffing levels and kept the budget slightly below the approved 
amount. To accommodate that, the City and County contributions increased by $2,047.00 
each. Both the City and County have made their revenue contributions. In addition to 
increased City and County contributions, the Interfund Cost Plan expense was reduced from 
$1,759.00 to $1,598.00. 

Legal counsel expenditures exceeded budget amount solely due to litigation defense for 
Bertsch Oceanview Legal action against LAFCo. The $3,937.00 shown under revenue is a 
partial city reimbursement. Full reimbursement from the City, per the indemnification 
clause, is being requested now that the suit has been settled in LAFCo’s favor.   

With the year-end, we are presenting a final accounting in Exhibit A. We would like to 
acknowledge the County Auditor’s helpfulness in providing information.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Exhibit A - FY 2016-17 Year End accounting 
  



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

 
Exhibit A 

DEL NORTE LAFCo  
FY 2016-17 FINAL & AMENDED BUDGET WITH YR END ACCOUNTING 

 

         FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 
    FINAL Amendment Year End. 
Account  EXPENDITURES       

Line # SERVICES & SUPPLIES       
20150 Insurance $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $1,870.44 
20200 CALAFCO Membership $840.00 $840.00 $840.00 
20221 Printing/ Postage $100.00 $100.00 $1.34 
20230 Professional Services        

  MSR/SOI Preparation $24,500.00 $22,405.00 $18,964.00 
  Application Processing $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 

20231 Prof. Serv. Executive Officer/ Admin. $47,500.00 $45,500.00 $45,398.95 
20232 Prof. Serv. Legal Counsel $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $7,445.48 
20240 Advertising/Publications $400.00 $400.00 $135.90 

  Conferences (CALAFCO when funds available) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
70530 Interfund-Cost Plan $1,759.00 $1,598.00 $1,596.00 
20233 Public Member Stipend (up to 8 mtgs @ $40/mtg) $320.00 $320.00 $200.00 

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES $89,019.00 $84,763.00 $76,452.11 
          
  REVENUES       

91125 
Project Revenue (Application 
Deposit/Reimbursement)* $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,937.72 

90300 Interest $10.00 $10.00 $278.45 
90780 Del Norte County $35,092.42 $35,092.00 $35,092.42 
90781 City of Crescent City $35,092.42 $35,092.00 $35,092.42 
07100 Funds from Account #42801007100 $8,824.16 $4,569.00 $4,569.00 

  TOTAL REVENUES $89,019.00 $84,763.00 $78,970.01 
          
  FUND BALANCE       

07100 Account #42801007100  $0.00 $0.00 $2,518.01 
 

*Deposit paid by applicants to cover application processing. Projected amount for auditor use in issuing 
payment for expense claims.  

 
 



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3C 

MEETING DATE: July 24, 2017  

TO:   Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM:  George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer  

SUBJECT:  Klamath Fire Protection District Status Report 

 
 
Del Norte LAFCo Fire Services Specialist John McFarland attended Klamath Fire 
Protection District (FPD) June 29 2017 Board meeting. The June 21 regular meeting 
could not be held due to lack of Quorum. All board members and the fire chief 
present. Items discussed at Del Norte LAFCO request included: 
 
1. Recap by Board Chair Eloisa Gaboni and John McFarland of June 6 meeting with 

Yurok Tribe to implement the Redwood Casino Hotel agreement.   
2. Update on District volunteer recruitment efforts.  Chief Lonnie Levi reported there 

are 12 volunteers on current roster, 2 are tribal employees including Larry Nova, a 
tribal forester. 

3. Discussion on increasing parcel based assessment. Larry Nova and District Board 
member Joan Fournier will serve on an assessment committee. There was a new 
District resident attending the meeting that also expressed support for an 
assessment increase. 

4. Evan Hawking was interviewed by the Board to serve as Assistant fire chief to 
cover for seasonal chief absence. Chief levi supports assistant chief appointment. 

5. District FY 2017-18 Budget preparation and adoption schedule. A draft budget was 
presented at the June meeting. Adoption expected at the July meeting. 

6. Coordination with Klamath Fire Auxiliary on upcoming fundraising activities. 
Auxiliary President and former volunteer firefighter Johnette Gahart and other 
Auxiliary board members attended the June 29 meeting.  

7. The Board approves an agreement with the Eel River Valley Fire Academy to 
conduct a Klamath Fire Academy in 2017. The agreement is attached, although the 
dates will change 

The Del Norte County Grand Jury included the Klamath Fire Protection District in their 
2017 Report.  That portion of the report is attached.  The Klamath FPD Board was 
scheduled to discuss this report at their July 19 Board Meeting. 
. 
ATTACHMENTS:  June 6 2017 Klamath FPD, Yurok Tribe and Del Norte LAFCo  

   meeting agenda for Redwood Casino Hotel agreement implementation   
Fire Academy Agreement 
Del Norte County Grand Jury2017 Report Klamath Fire Protection District 
Excerpt 



Klamath Fire Protection District - Yurok Tribe 
Del Norte LAFCo Meeting;  

June 6, 2017 2:00PM 
Oregos Room, Redwood Hotel Casino, Klamath CA 

 
Invitees:  Yurok Tribe: Troy Ralstin, David Gensaw, Dean Baker, 

 Earl Jackson, Leonard Masten 
Yurok EDC: Tanya Sangrey, Terry Colton,  

  Klamath FPD: Eloisa Gaboni, Rocco Fiori, Lonnie Levi 
  Del Norte LAFCo: George Williamson, John McFarland 

Proposed Outcomes 
1. Assignments for Redwood Hotel Casino - Service Agreement Implementation 
2. Communication and Coordination methods 

Agenda: 
• Brief Introductions; 

• Draft services agreement implementation reporting and planning progress: 
Klamath FPD workers compensation insurance coverage for new volunteers, 
Tribal employees that are volunteers will be covered by the Districts insurance; 

Klamath FPD volunteer recruitment efforts, 8 volunteer recruits, mostly past 
members being reactivated, 2 are tribal employees including tribal forester Larry Nova; 

Seasonal Assistant Fire chief appointment, Klamath FPD will interview Evan 
Hawking, may be other candidates as well; 

Station rebuilding projects and apparatus acquisition grants, Chief Levi to develop list 
of facilities upgrades, deferred maintenance, apparatus and equipment needing funding.  

Klamath FPD FY 2017-18 Budget preparation and adoption, draft budget at the 
May meeting & approval at June meeting. Assigned to Board Chair and Fire Chief; 

Clarification that residents, & those working in District eligible to be volunteers, 
Klamath FPD Board agreed residency was no longer sole consideration, working for 
any employer in Klamath now meets the volunteer membership requirement; 

Fundraising activities, Klamath Fire Auxiliary President and former volunteer 
firefighter Johnette Gahart to be contacted.  Need ideas for events this year! 

• Implementation schedule update 

• Other parties to be involved: Del Norte County, Klamath CSD, CALFIRE, OES; 

• Benefit assessment update for Klamath FPD  
Parcel fee increase discussed at Klamath FPD Board May 2017 meeting.  Larry Nova 
and Board member Joan Fournier to serve on an assessment committee.  

• Next steps, next meeting, closure 







Del Norte County Grand Jury Report - 2017 EXCERPT







DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4A 

MEETING DATE: July 24, 2017  

TO:   Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM:  George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer  

SUBJECT: Executive Officers Report 

 
 
Verbal Report on Harbor District presentation to Commission July 18, 2017 

Verbal Report on Hussey Ranch Corporation (HRC) Community Services District (CSD) 
potential annexation discussions 

Responded to letter from HRC CSD to Jed Smith Homeowners Association on potential 
consolidation of water systems. The Jed Smith Homeowners Association is within the CSD 
Sphere of Influence  

Verbal Report on State Water Resources Control Board coordination on water services 
extensions to mobile home parks 

Sent letter to the City of Crescent city, with a copy to State Water Resources Control 
Board outlining LAFCo process for extending services outside City boundaries for health 
and safety purposes. 

Verbal Report on Cost recovery for BOV CSD litigation (Counsel) 

Verbal Report on State legislation for Special District seats on LAFCo 

CALFIRE Correspondence - attached 

Del Norte LAFCo Policies and Procedures Regarding Rules of Order: 

The Policies and Procedures adopted in 2014 state that Robert’s Rules of Order are the 
preferred rules of order for LAFCo meeting procedures: 

“Robert’s Rules of Order is designated as the general guide for conducting 
meetings and will be used to resolve points of order. Three members of the 
Commission constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. No act of the 
commission shall be valid or binding unless three or more members concur. In the 
absence of a quorum, the members present shall adjourn the hearing to a stated 
time and place (per Robert's Rules of Order).” 

However, the policies and procedures are being updated and it is recommended that the new 
rules of order for LAFCo meeting procedures be Rosenburg’s Rules of Order:  

“Rosenberg’s Rules of Order is designated as the general guide for conducting 
meetings and will be used to resolve points of order, unless said rules conflict 
with provisions of the California Government Code concerning the meetings of 
public entities and agencies.” 












